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             Fall Festival 
                  Friday September 28, 2018  


6:30p – 11p 


Saturday September 29, 2018 


                    9a – 5p 


                     Downtown Stoneville 


 


Live Music 


Food & Beer Garden 


Crafts 


Contests 


Raffle – Cash & Prizes 
Call Tammy Evans for Vendor Booth Rentals 336-423-9721 
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 AGREEMENT TO FURNISH PROFESSIONAL ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
  


TOWN OF STONEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REHABILITIATION 


CDBG INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 


 


This AGREEMENT made this     day of        , 2018, by and between the 
TOWN OF STONEVILLE, hereinafter called the OWNER and LKC ENGINEERING, PLLC, 
hereinafter called the ADMINISTRATOR. 
 


WHEREAS, the Owner intends to provide Grant Administrative Services for the Sanitary 
Sewer System Rehabilitation Project as described in Stoneville’s Community Development 


Block Grant (CDBG No. 17-I-2970) Infrastructure (Sanitary Sewer System Rehabilitation) 
Application, hereinafter called the PROJECT; and, 


 


WHEREAS, the ADMINISTRATOR agrees to provide professional services as described 
herein to assist the OWNER in completing the described PROJECT. 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, the OWNER and ADMINISTRATOR, for the consideration hereinafter 
named, agree as follows: 


The ADMINISTRATOR agrees to perform for the above named PROJECT professional services 
as hereinafter set forth. 


The OWNER agrees to compensate the ADMINISTRATOR for services as hereinafter provided. 


The ADMINISTRATOR's services shall include: 


 
1. Finalize the Environmental Review process, publish all required notices and send 


necessary documentation to the necessary funding agency(s) in order to receive 
release of funds. 


2. Complete Citizen Participation compliance. 
3. Complete Fair Housing compliance to include preparing and implementing quarterly fair 


housing activities. 
4. Compliance with Equal Employment and Procurement compliance. 
5. Compliance with Section 3 to include completion of a Section 3 Plan. 
6. Compliance with Section 504 to include completion of a Section 504 Self Evaluation 


Survey. 
7. Compliance with Language Access Plan to include completion of a Language Access 


Plan. 
8. Completion of the Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan. 
9. Completion of a Complaint and Grievance Procedure for Compliance plans. 
10. Labor Standards compliance. 
11. Completion of all required reports and documentation. 
12. Assist the Town in establishing a financial management system.  Preparation of all 


requisitions, disbursement documentation, and preliminary approval of disbursements.  
The Town will approve and sign all requisitions and disbursement checks.  All posting 
of checks will be performed by the Town.  The services will not include the 
disbursement or account of funds distributed by the Town’s, financial officer, legal 
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advice, fiscal audits, or assistance with activities not related to the CDBG-I project.   
13. Establish and maintain a filing system in accordance with the required standards as 


established by the funding agency. 
14. Prepare general policy documents to be adopted by the Board of Commissioners to 


insure compliance with all aspects of Certification submitted to the State. 
15. Perform all tasks necessary to procure professional services, including legal, appraisal, 


and engineering to meet the program objectives.  This will include the development of 
advertisements, Requests for Proposals, and contract documents meeting federal 
requirements. 


16. Coordinate with all third party professional contracts for the implementation of the 
project and provide assistance as needed. 


17. Oversee performance on engineering contract.  Upon receipt of required survey maps, 
procure appraisal services and initiate right-of-way acquisitions (to be in conformance 
with Uniform Act or Real Property Acquisition and Relocation).  Coordinate negotiations 
up to point of condemnation.  If condemnation becomes necessary, work with Project 
Attorney to carry out this process.  Review bid advertisement, bid procedures, and 
contract documents prepared by engineer to assure conformance with all federal and 
state laws.  Assist in bidding project.  Attend pre-construction conference to advice 
contractor of all labor regulations.  Request appropriate wage decision, monitor payrolls 
for compliance with applicable labor regulations.  Review requests for payment.  
Handle all related citizen complaints. 


18. Represent the Town on all monitoring visits or any related visits by the funding agency 
and prepare any responses to the funding agency as may be required. 


19. Provide necessary assistance during formal audits to the program. 
20. Handle all aspects of Program Close-out including but not limited to public hearing 


notices, preparation of Final Performance Report, and Certificate of Completion. 
21. Assume all administrative responsibility for the North Carolina Department of 


Environmental Quality (NCDEQ) program compliance and completion of all activities 
defined in Stoneville’s CDBG Infrastructure application and meet all of the following 


milestones as listed in the Letter of Intent to Fund from NCDEQ dated May 14, 2018 
(see Exhibit “A” – Project Milestone). 


 
The ADMINISTRATOR's services shall not include (1) Appraisals, (2) Legal Services, (3) 
engineering, design or construction of the sewer system and (4) Preparation of Audit Reports 
and/or any other financial documents relating to the project.  These services, as required, may be 
furnished by the ADMINISTRATOR and separately paid for by the OWNER, for a price to be 
subsequently agreed upon as the need for these services arises, or in the absence of such 
separate agreement, as specified hereinafter as "additional services", excepting those cases 
where the OWNER chooses to make direct payments for same. 
 
Payment:  The OWNER agrees to pay the ADMINISTRATOR for services noted as follows: 
 
  CDBG ADMINISTRATION   A lump sum fee of EIGHTY-FIVE THOUSAND 


DOLLARS 
                     ($85,000.00) 
   
It is agreed by the parties hereto that the appropriate adjustments in any fixed and/or lump sum 
payments shall be made in the event that the physical scope of the PROJECT, time for 
completion, or services required are materially increased or decreased beyond that contemplated 
at this time. 
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The ADMINISTRATOR shall receive progress payments based on the amount of work 
performed and documented as submitted to the OWNER by the ADMINISTRATOR. 


Should the ADMINISTRATOR be required to render "additional services" in connection with 
related work upon which the work scope does not apply, the ADMINISTRATOR shall receive 
additional compensation for such additional services at the hourly rates as specified on the fee 
schedule attached hereto as Exhibit "B" – Fee Schedule for the hours actually worked by the 
appropriate classification of employee.   
 
GOVERNING LAW 
 
This Agreement shall be governed by and in accordance with the laws of the State of North 
Carolina.  All actions relating in any way to this Agreement shall be brought in the General 
Court of Justice of the State of North Carolina or in the Federal District Court for the Middle 
District of North Carolina. 


The following contract provisions shall be referenced in Exhibit "C" – Contract Provisions and 
become a part of this Agreement: 


 
▪ Conflict of Interest  
▪ Legal Remedies and Termination 
▪ Nondiscrimination  
▪ Age Discrimination  
▪ Section 504 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap 
▪ Section 3  
▪ Access to Records and Record Retainage 
▪ Lobbying 


 
 
The OWNER and ADMINISTRATOR hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants 
contained herein. 
  
IN WITNESS HEREOF, they have executed this Agreement, the day and the year first above 
written, which is the effective date of this Agreement. 


 


 


LKC ENGINEERING, PLLC       TOWN OF STONEVILLE 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________  By:________________________________ 
 Bill Lester, Jr., P.E.                     Town Manager  
 Member/Manager        
 
 
Witness:_____________________________   Attest:       
 Sharon McDuffie     Town Clerk 
 Funding Administrator 
     
(SEAL)       (SEAL) 
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Preaudit Certificate: 
 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Finance Officer- Town of Stoneville 
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EXHIBIT A 


 


PROJECT MILESTONES 


 


 


 


Milestone         Date 


 


Attendance at EA/ER Workshop     May 17 or June 7, 2018 


Attendance at the Compliance Workshop    May 16 or June 6, 2018 


Contract with DWI Executed      June 22, 2018 


Engineering Report Submitted     October 26, 2018 


Environmental Doc & Req for Release of Funds Submitted  March 22, 2019 


Funding Approval Conditions Submitted    March 22, 2019 


Environmental Doc & Req for Release of Funds Approved  April 5, 2019 


Engineering Report Approved      March 1, 2019 


Bid and Design Package Submitted     September 2, 2019 


Bid and Design Package Approved     January 3, 2020 


Submit Itemized Bid Tabulation     March 6, 2020 


Execute Construction Contracts     April 10, 2020 


 


Compliance Plans 


 


Adopted Equal Opportunity and Procurement Plan   October 22, 2018 


Adopted Language Access Plan     October 22, 2018 


Adopted Section 3 Plan      October 22, 2018 


Section 504 Self-Evaluation & Adopted Grievance Procedures October 22, 2018 


Adopted Residential Anti-Displacement/Relocation Assistance  October 22, 2018 


Adopted Citizen Participation Plan     October 22, 2018 


Excessive Force Provision      October 22, 2018 


Floodplain Certification – Map      October 22, 2018 


Adopted Assessment of Fair Housing     March 22, 2019 
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EXHIBIT B 


 


HOURLY RATE STRUCTURE 


 


 


 


LKC ENGINEERING offers a competitive rate structure to provide the highest quality of 
engineering services with controlled overhead.  The rates below cover all expenses including 
travel time. 


 
 


MANAGING PARTNER     $120.00/HOUR 


PROJECT MANAGER     $ 90.00/HOUR 


PROJECT ENGINEER     $ 80.00/HOUR 


SENIOR DESIGNER     $ 80.00/HOUR 


DESIGNER      $ 70.00/HOUR 


SENIOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGER   $ 80.00/HOUR 


CONSTRUCTION MANAGER    $ 70.00/HOUR 


FUNDING ADMINISTRATOR    $ 70.00/HOUR 


ADMINISTRATOR      $ 50.00/HOUR  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Town of Stoneville, NC    
CDBG No. 17-I-2970                       7 


 


 


EXHIBIT C 


 


CDBG CONTRACT PROVISIONS 


 


 


CONFLICT OF INTEREST    (2 CFR Part §200.318 General procurement standards) 


Interest of Members, Officers, or Employees of the Recipient, Members of Local 


Governing Body, or Other Public Officials.  No member, officer, or employee of the 


recipient, or its agents, no member of the governing body of the locality in which the program 


is situated, and no other public official of such locality or localities who exercises any functions 


or responsibilities with respect to the program during his tenure or for one year thereafter, shall 


have any financial interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the proceeds 


thereof, for work to be performed in connection with the program assisted under this 


agreement.  Immediate family members of said members, officers, employees, and officials 


are similarly barred from having any financial interest in the program.  The recipient shall 


incorporate, or cause to be incorporated, in all such contracts or subcontracts, a provision 


prohibiting such interest pursuant to the purpose of this section. 


 


LEGAL REMEDIES AND TERMINATION - As stated in 24 CFR Part 85.36 (2 CFR Appendix II 


to Part 200 – Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards)  - 


Contracts other than small purchases shall contain provisions or conditions which will allow for 


administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach 


contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate. 


 


FOR CAUSE.   If, through any cause, the ADMINISTRATOR shall fail to fulfill in timely and 


proper manner his obligations under this Agreement, then the OWNER shall thereupon have the 


right to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the ADMINISTRATOR of such 


termination and specifying the effective date thereof, at least five days before the effective date 


of such termination.  In such event, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, 


drawings, maps, models, photographs, and reports prepared by the ADMINISTRATOR under 


this Agreement shall, at the option of the OWNER become its property and the 


ADMINISTRATOR shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work 


satisfactorily completed hereunder. 


 


WITHOUT CAUSE. The OWNER, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in whole or in 


part, at its discretion upon providing the ADMINISTRATOR a 30 day written notice of 


termination.  If this contract is terminated, the OWNER shall be liable only for payment under 


the payment provisions of this contract for services rendered before the effective date of 


termination.  In such event, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, 


drawings, maps, models, photographs, and reports prepared by the ADMINISTRATOR  under 
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this Agreement shall, at the option of the OWNER, become its property and the 


ADMINISTRATOR shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work 


satisfactorily completed hereunder.   


 


 


NONDISCRIMINATION CLAUSE - Section 109, Housing and Community Development 


Act of 1974 


No person in the United States shall on the ground of race, color, national origin, or sex be 


excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination 


under any program or activity funded in whole or in part with funds available under this title. 


 


AGE DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE, as amended - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age 


No qualified person shall on the basis of age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the 


benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity which 


receives or benefits from Federal financial assistance. 


 


SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973, as amended - Nondiscrimination 


on the Basis of Disability 


No qualified disabled person shall on the basis of disability, be excluded from participation in, 


be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program or 


activity which receives or benefits from federal financial assistance. 


 


SECTION 3 


All section 3 covered contracts shall include the following clause (referred to as the section 3 


clause): 


 


A.  The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of 


section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 


U.S.C. 1701u (section 3). The purpose of section 3 is to ensure that employment and 


other economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects 


covered by section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and 


very low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance 


for housing. 


B.  The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 


135, which implement section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the 


parties to this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment 


that would prevent them from complying with the part 135 regulations. 


C.  The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers 


with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other 
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understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization or workers' 


representative of the contractor's commitments under this section 3 clause, and will 


post copies of the notice in conspicuous places at the work site where both 


employees and applicants for training and employment positions can see the notice. 


The notice shall describe the section 3 preference, shall set forth minimum number 


and job titles subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship and training positions, the 


qualifications for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking applications 


for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin. 


D. The contractor agrees to include this section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to 


compliance with regulations in 24 CFR part 135, and agrees to take appropriate 


action, as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this section 3 


clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 


CFR part 135. The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the 


contractor has notice or knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in violation 


of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. 


E. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training 


positions, that are filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is 


executed, and (2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR 


part 135 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to 


circumvent the contractor's obligations under 24 CFR part 135. 


F. Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions, 


termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD 


assisted contracts. 


G.  With respect to work performed in connection with section 3 covered Indian housing 


assistance, section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance 


Act (25 U.S.C. 450e) also applies to the work to be performed under this contract. 


Section 7(b) requires that to the greatest extent feasible (i) preference and 


opportunities for training and employment shall be given to Indians, and (ii) 


preference in the award of contracts and subcontracts shall be given to Indian 


organizations and Indian-owned Economic Enterprises. Parties to this contract that 


are subject to the provisions of section 3 and section 7(b) agree to comply with 


section 3 to the maximum extent feasible, but not in derogation of compliance with 


section 7(b). 


 


ACCESS TO RECORDS AND RECORD RETAINAGE CLAUSE 


In general, all official project records and documents must be maintained during the operation 


of this project and for a period of three years following closeout in compliance with 24 CFR 


§570.490.  The North Carolina Department of the Treasurer, U.S. Department of Housing and 


Urban Development, the Comptroller General of the United States, and the NC Department of 


Environmental Quality, or any of their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to 


any books, documents, papers and records of the Administering Agency which are pertinent to 
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the execution of this agreement, for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts and 


transcriptions in compliance with the above Rule. 


 


LOBBYING CLAUSE 


Required by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code 


 
1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 


undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 


employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or 


an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal 


contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into 


of any cooperative, agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 


modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 


 


2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds, have been paid or will be paid to any 


person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 


Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 


Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, 


the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to 


Report Lobbying” in accordance with its instructions.  


This is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 


transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for 


making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code.  Any 


person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 


than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each failure. 


 








REVISED  


AGENDA 


Stoneville Town Council Meeting 


August 14, 2018 


7:00 PM 


Call to Order-Mayor Craddock 


Pledge of Allegiance 
Invocation 


Approval of Minutes from Last Meeting 
Approval of Agenda 


 


New Business: 


1. Friendship Park Mural Project – Ken Gamble & Brandon Hardison 


2. No Pipeline Rockingham Committee – Lyn Carlisle 


3. Fall Festival Support Request – Bobby Stanley 


4. Amendment to Stoneville Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Ordinance – Ken Gamble 


5. Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Appointment – Ken Gamble 


6. Amendment to 2018-2019 Schedule of Fees – O-2018-02 – Ken Gamble 


7. Budget Amendment 1 – Joanna Dalton 


8. Approval of Professional Administrative Services Contract for CDBG Project – Ken Gamble 


9. Approval of Professional Engineering Services Contract for CDBG Project – Ken Gamble 


10. CDBG Resolution for Check/Requisition Signatures and Administration – Ken Gamble 


11. CDBG Project Ordinance – O-2018-03 – Ken Gamble 


12. CDBG Section 3 Fair Housing Requirements – Bill Lester 


13. USDA Funding Application for Pocket Park – Ken Gamble 


Public Comments: 


Old Business: 


1. USDA Project Progress – Ken Gamble 


Town Manager Report: 


1. Billing Software Update 


2. Pocket Park Update 


3. Cruise In – August 17th 5p-8p  


4. Senior Appreciation Breakfast – Saturday September 8th 7a-11a 


5. Final Get Fit Timed Mile Walk/Run – Saturday September 15th 9:00 a.m.  


Executive Session Into: 


Executive Session Out Of: 


Adjourn/Recess: 








 


BE IT ORDAINED BY TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF STONEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


The following fees are approved for the Town of Stoneville’s operations for the Fiscal year 


beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019  


Town of Stoneville                                                                                                              


Schedule of Fees                                                                                                                         


2018-2019 


0-2018-02 


Administration 


Bad Check Fee….…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………25.00 


Copies – First 5 Pages………………………………………………………………………………………………….No Charge 


Copies – Page 6 through End………………………………………………………………………………………….$0.10 ea      


Fax – Page 1………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..$1.00     


Fax Page 2 through End………………………………………………………………………………………………….$0.25 ea 


Notary Fee – First Signature………………………………..………………………………………………………………$5.00 


Notary Fee – Each Additional Signature on Same Document………………………………………….$1.00 ea   


Stoneville License Plate……………………………………………………………………………………………………….$5.00 


Stoneville Print………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$25.00  


Cemetery 


Grave Site (Stoneville Resident)………………………………………………………………………………………$300.00                                                             


Grave Site (Non-Resident)………………………..…………………………………………………………………….$750.00 


Mausoleum (Resident & Non-Resident)………………………………………………………………………..$1450.00   


Garbage / Recycling 


Garbage………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$14.07 Monthly 


Recycling……………………………………………………………………………………………………...........$1.50 Monthly                                                                                                                                                                          


Bulky Item Pick-Up…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$20.00  


Parks and Recreation 


Refundable Deposit Required for Stoneville Park Field and Shelter Reservations……………$100.00       


Ball Field Rental – Hourly…………………………………………………………………………………………………..$20.00       


Ball Field Rental – All Day………………………………………………………………………………………………..$100.00            


Lights Per Hour………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$15.00         


Large Shelter (6 Hours)……………………………………………………………………………………………………..$25.00  







 


Small Shelter (6 Hours)……………………………………………………………………………………………………..$25.00   


Stage…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$50.00       


Entire Park………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$300.00 


Youth Sports Registration……………………………………………………………...…………………………………$40.00 


T-Ball and Baseball Player Registration….………………………………………………………………………… $50.00 


Youth Sport Multi Child Discount ($5.00 off Sport Registration Fee)                                                                          


Youth Sport Play-Up Discount (50% off Registration Fee for Second Age Bracket in Same Sport) 


Youth Sport Head Coach Discount (50% off Registration Fee in Same Sport)                                                                 


Adult Volleyball Team Registration……………………………………………………………………………………$65.00 


Adult Volleyball Registration Per Player.……………………………………………………………………………$20.00 


Adult Basketball Player Registration………………………………………………………………………………….$60.00  


Police 


Copy of Report……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$5.00        


Copy of In Car Camera or Other Video………………………………………………………………………………$10.00                   


Off Duty Officer Fee…..…………………………………………………………………………………………………$30.00 Hr      


Golf Cart Registration………………………………………………………………………………………………………..$50.00    


Golf Cart Renewal…………………………………………………………………………………………………………$10.00 Yr 


Property Tax Rate 


Tax Rate……………………………………………………………………………………………………$0.69 / $100 Valuation 


Car Tax……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$5.00 Yr 


Public Works 


Mowing Nuisance Lot………………………………………………………………………………………………………$100.00 


Clearing Nuisance Lot - Labor……………………………………………………………………………………….$75.00 Hr 


Clearing Nuisance Lot – Dump Truck…………………………………………………………………………….$50.00 Hr 


Clearing Nuisance Lot – Back Hoe…………………………………………………………………………………$50.00 Hr 


Clearing Nuisance Lot – Tractor…………………………………………………………………………………….$30.00 Hr 


Water – Sewer 


Water-Sewer Rates are Revised on January 1st by the Mayodan Water System                                      


Water – Stoneville Residents………………………$15.78 Minimum plus $8.89 per 1,000 Gallons Used                                                                                              


Sewer – Stoneville Residents………………………$15.78 Minimum plus $8.89 per 1,000 Gallons Used                                                                                                                


Water – Non-Residents…………………………….$28.58 Minimum plus $15.29 per 1,000 Gallons Used                                                                                                                                                         


Sewer – Non-Residents…………………………….$28.58 Minimum plus $15.29 per 1,000 Gallons Used                                                                                                                                        


Water Service Deposit…………………………………………………………………………………………………….$200.00 


Late Payment Fee – Applied Monthly after 5 p.m. on the 20th, unless the 20th Falls on Day Town 







 


Hall Closed – Then Applied after 5 p.m. on the First Business Day that 


Follows…………………………………………………………………..……………………….10% of Outstanding Balance            


Water Meter Tampering Fine……………………………………………………………………………………………$75.00 


Meter Installation Fee.……………………………………………………………………………………………………..$25.00 


Delinquency Fee……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$50.00  


Residential Water / Sewer Tap – Inside Stoneville…………………………………………………………..$625.00 


Commercial Water / Sewer Tap – Inside Stoneville……………………………………………………….$1250.00 


Residential Water / Sewer Tap – Outside Stoneville………………………………………………………$1250.00 


Commercial Water / Sewer Tap – Outside Stoneville…………………………………………………….$1875.00 


Replace Sewer Clean-Out Cap……………………………………………………………………………………………$25.00     


Tap Cut..…………………………………………………………………………………………..$35.00 plus $14.00 per Foot 


Zoning 


Zoning Permit……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$25.00   


Applications for Rezoning / Special Use / Variances………………………………………………………..$250.00 


 


Adopted this 14th day of August, 2018. 


 


_____________________________    _____________________________ 


Ricky Craddock – Mayor     Sherri Darnell, Town Clerk 


 








 
ORDINANCE O-2017-06 


AMENDMENT TO SECTIONS 170-34 AND 170-35 OF CHAPTER 170 – PARKS AND 


RECREATION IN THE STONEVILLE TOWN ORDINANCE 


 


WHEREAS, the Stoneville Parks and Recreation Advisory Board unanimously approved 


recommended changes to Title XVII: Parks and Recreation relating to the role the Parks 


and Recreation Director playS on the Advisory Board and the appointment of the 


Chairman of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board; and  


WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Stoneville agrees with the 


recommendations of the Stoneville Parks and Recreation Advisory Board and approves 


requested changes to Sections 170-34 and 170-35 of Title XVII: Parks and Recreation 


in the Stoneville Code of Ordinances; and 


WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Stoneville wish for the changes to be 


effective upon adoption;  


NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Stoneville 


that Title XVII: Parks and Recreation – Chapter 170 – Parks and Recreation be 


amended as it appears below: 


Title XVII: Parks and Recreation 


• Chapter 170 - PARKS AND RECREATION 


• Sec. 170-34. - Membership. 


The Advisory Board shall be composed of six members and the Parks and Recreation Director. 
The members shall be appointed by the Council. The Parks and Recreation Director will serve as 
an ex-officio member of the Advisory Board. The elected Town Council member appointed to the 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board will serve as Chairman of the Board. 


Board terms shall run from July 1 in the year appointed to June 30 of the expiration year. At the 
time the Advisory Board is formed, two members will be appointed for one year each, two for two 
years each and two for three years. After that time, appointments or reappointments shall be for a 
three-year term. Members will serve at the pleasure of Council without monetary compensation. 


(Ord. No. 2017-06, § 1, 10-3-2017; Amended 08-14-2018) 


 


 







 


• Sec. 170-35. - Officers and duties. 


 
(a) Chairman. The elected Town Council member appointed to the 


Parks and Recreation Advisory Board shall serve as the 
chairman. The chairman will vote only to break a tie vote when a 
quorum is present. The chairman shall decide matters of order 
and procedure, unless directed otherwise by a majority of the 
Advisory Board in session at the time. The chairman shall appoint 
any committees found necessary to investigate any matter before 
the Advisory Board. 
 


(b) Vice-chairman. A vice-chairman shall be elected by the Advisory 
Board from among its members. The term of the vice-chairman 
shall be one year, beginning as of the first meeting in July. The  
vice-chairman shall preside in the absence of the chairman and 
assume all duties and responsibilities delegated by the chairman. 


 


 (Ord. No. 2017-06, § 1, 10-3-2017; Amended 08-14-2018) 


  


The amendments to this ordinance are effective on its date of adoption, this 14th 


day of August, 2018. 


 


 


                Attested to: 


________________________                      ___________________________ 
Ricky Craddock, Mayor      Sherri Darnell, Town Clerk 
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 AGREEMENT TO FURNISH PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 


TOWN OF STONEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REHABILITATION PROJECT 


 
CDBG INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 


 
This AGREEMENT made this               day of                     , 2018, by and between the TOWN 
OF STONEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA, hereinafter called the OWNER, and LKC 
ENGINEERING, PLLC, hereinafter called the ENGINEER. 
  
WHEREAS, the Owner intends to construct the Sanitary Sewer System Rehabilitation Project 
as described in Stoneville’s Community Development Block Grant (CDBG No. 17-I-2970) for 
Infrastructure. Application, hereinafter called the PROJECT; and  


 


NOW, THEREFORE, the OWNER and ENGINEER, for the consideration hereinafter named, 
agree as follows: 
 
The ENGINEER agrees to perform the following tasks obligated under this Agreement: 


 


SECTION I- PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT   


 
a) Engineer shall complete the Preliminary Engineering Report in accordance with CDBG 


Guidelines as established by NCDEQ for the program.  
 
b) Coordinate necessary meetings with Owner and NCDEQ Staff as required to gain 


approval of Preliminary Engineering Report. 
 


c) Assist Project Administrator in completion of the Environmental Review Record in 
conjunction with completion of the Preliminary Engineering Report.  


 


d) Assist Project Administrator in meeting milestones as listed in the Letter of Intent to Fund 
from NCDEQ dated May 14, 2018 (see Exhibit “A” – Project Milestones). 


 


The ENGINEER'S services shall not include (1) preparation of detailed wetlands or biological 
surveys or assessments, (2) preparation of an environmental assessment or environmental review 
document, (3) design and construction administration of the electrical upgrades, (4) negotiations 
with property owners for real property or easement acquisition, (5) payment of permit fees, (6) 
design of electrical upgrades or additions.  These services, if required, may be arranged for and 
furnished by the Engineer and separately paid for by the Owner for a price to be subsequently 
agreed upon if the need for these services arises.   
 


PAYMENT 
 
The OWNER agrees to pay the ENGINEER for services noted in Sections I above for the 
following not to exceed fees: 
 
I) PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT  TWELVE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED 
  DOLLARS ($12,500)  
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It is agreed by the parties hereto that the appropriate adjustments in any fixed and/or lump sum 
payments shall be made in the event that the physical scope of the PROJECT, time for 
completion, or services required are materially increased or decreased beyond that contemplated 
at this time. 
 
The ENGINEER shall receive progress payments based on monthly estimates as submitted to the 
OWNER by the ENGINEER. 
 
Should the ENGINEER be required to render "additional services" in connection with related work 
upon which the work scope does not apply, the ENGINEER shall receive additional compensation 
for such additional services at the hourly rates as specified on the fee schedule attached hereto 
as Exhibit "B" for the hours actually worked by the appropriate classification of employee. 
 


TERM OF SERVICE 


 
The Term of Service shall be defined as the length of time elapsed between the execution of this 
Agreement by all parties and the Final Certification of the construction and the closeout of the 
project with the Community Development Block Grant program.   
 


TERMINATION 


 
This Agreement may be terminated by either party on the basis of performance or for 
convenience.  The terminating party shall notify the terminated party in writing a minimum of 30 
days before the date of termination.  Upon termination, the Engineer shall turn over all records, 
files, and other pertinent information to the Owner, and the Engineer shall be fairly compensated 
for services provided prior to termination. 
 


The following Contract Provisions shall be referenced in Exhibit “C” as part of this Agreement:   


  
- Conflict of Interest 
- Legal Remedies and Termination 
- Nondiscrimination 
- Age Discrimination 
- Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (Handicap Discrimination) 
- Section 3 
- Access to Records and Record Retainage 
- Lobbying 
 
The OWNER and ENGINEER hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants contained 
within this Agreement with Exhibits A, B and C herein. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


Town of Stoneville, NC                  3  


CDBG No. 17-I-2970 


IN WITNESS HEREOF, they have executed this Agreement, the day and the year first above 
written, which is the effective date of this Agreement.  
 
 


LKC ENGINEERING, PLLC        TOWN OF STONEVILLE 
 
 
By:                                                            By:            
 Bill Lester, Jr., P.E.           Town Manager 
 Member/Manager 
 
 
Witness:                                                 Attest:           
          Sharon McDuffie                 Town Clerk 
            


 
(SEAL)       (SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
Preaudit Certificate: 
 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Finance Officer- Town of Stoneville 
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EXHIBIT A 


 


PROJECT MILESTONES 


 


 


 


Milestone         Date 


 


Attendance at EA/ER Workshop     May 17 or June 7, 2018 


Attendance at the Compliance Workshop    May 16 or June 6, 2018 


Contract with DWI Executed      June 22, 2018 


Engineering Report Submitted     October 26, 2018 


Environmental Doc & Req for Release of Funds Submitted  March 22, 2019 


Funding Approval Conditions Submitted    March 22, 2019 


Environmental Doc & Req for Release of Funds Approved  April 5, 2019 


Engineering Report Approved      March 1, 2019 


Bid and Design Package Submitted     September 2, 2019 


Bid and Design Package Approved     January 3, 2020 


Submit Itemized Bid Tabulation     March 6, 2020 


Execute Construction Contracts     April 10, 2020 


 


Compliance Plans 


 


Adopted Equal Opportunity and Procurement Plan   October 22, 2018 


Adopted Language Access Plan     October 22, 2018 


Adopted Section 3 Plan      October 22, 2018 


Section 504 Self-Evaluation & Adopted Grievance Procedures October 22, 2018 


Adopted Residential Anti-Displacement/Relocation Assistance  October 22, 2018 


Adopted Citizen Participation Plan     October 22, 2018 


Excessive Force Provision      October 22, 2018 


Floodplain Certification – Map      October 22, 2018 


Adopted Assessment of Fair Housing     March 22, 2019 
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EXHIBIT B 


 


HOURLY RATE STRUCTURE 


 


 


 


LKC ENGINEERING offers a competitive rate structure to provide the highest quality of 
engineering services with controlled overhead.  The rates below cover all expenses including 
travel time. 


 
 


MANAGING PARTNER     $120.00/HOUR 


PROJECT MANAGER     $ 90.00/HOUR 


PROJECT ENGINEER     $ 80.00/HOUR 


SENIOR DESIGNER     $ 80.00/HOUR 


DESIGNER      $ 70.00/HOUR 


SENIOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGER   $ 80.00/HOUR 


CONSTRUCTION MANAGER    $ 70.00/HOUR 


FUNDING ADMINISTRATOR    $ 70.00/HOUR 


ADMINISTRATOR      $ 50.00/HOUR  
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EXHIBIT C 


 


CDBG CONTRACT PROVISIONS 


 


 


CONFLICT OF INTEREST    (2 CFR Part §200.318 General procurement standards) 


Interest of Members, Officers, or Employees of the Recipient, Members of Local 


Governing Body, or Other Public Officials.  No member, officer, or employee of the recipient, 


or its agents, no member of the governing body of the locality in which the program is situated, 


and no other public official of such locality or localities who exercises any functions or 


responsibilities with respect to the program during his tenure or for one year thereafter, shall 


have any financial interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the proceeds 


thereof, for work to be performed in connection with the program assisted under this 


agreement.  Immediate family members of said members, officers, employees, and officials are 


similarly barred from having any financial interest in the program.  The recipient shall 


incorporate, or cause to be incorporated, in all such contracts or subcontracts, a provision 


prohibiting such interest pursuant to the purpose of this section. 


 


LEGAL REMEDIES AND TERMINATION - As stated in 24 CFR Part 85.36 (2 CFR Appendix II 


to Part 200 – Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards)  - 


Contracts other than small purchases shall contain provisions or conditions which will allow for 


administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach 


contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate. 


 


FOR CAUSE.   If, through any cause, the ENGINEER shall fail to fulfill in timely and proper 


manner his obligations under this Agreement, then the OWNER shall thereupon have the right to 


terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the ENGINEER of such termination and 


specifying the effective date thereof, at least five days before the effective date of such 


termination.  In such event, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, 


maps, models, photographs, and reports prepared by the ENGINEER under this Agreement shall, 


at the option of the OWNER become its property and the ENGINEER shall be entitled to receive 


just and equitable compensation for any work satisfactorily completed hereunder. 


 


WITHOUT CAUSE. The OWNER, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in whole or in 


part, at its discretion upon providing the ENGINEER a 30 day written notice of termination.  If 


this contract is terminated, the OWNER shall be liable only for payment under the payment 


provisions of this contract for services rendered before the effective date of termination.  In 


such event, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, 


models, photographs, and reports prepared by the ENGINEER under this Agreement shall, at 


the option of the OWNER, become its property and the ENGINEER shall be entitled to receive 


just and equitable compensation for any work satisfactorily completed hereunder.   
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NONDISCRIMINATION CLAUSE - Section 109, Housing and Community Development Act 


of 1974 


No person in the United States shall on the ground of race, color, national origin, or sex be 


excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under 


any program or activity funded in whole or in part with funds available under this title. 


 


AGE DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE, as amended - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age 


No qualified person shall on the basis of age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the 


benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity which 


receives or benefits from Federal financial assistance. 


 


SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973, as amended - Nondiscrimination 


on the Basis of Disability 


No qualified disabled person shall on the basis of disability, be excluded from participation in, 


be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program or 


activity which receives or benefits from federal financial assistance. 


 


SECTION 3 


All section 3 covered contracts shall include the following clause (referred to as the section 3 


clause): 


 


A.  The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of section 


3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u 


(section 3). The purpose of section 3 is to ensure that employment and other 


economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects 


covered by section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very 


low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for 


housing. 


B.  The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 


135, which implement section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the 


parties to this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment 


that would prevent them from complying with the part 135 regulations. 


C.  The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers 


with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other 


understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization or workers' 


representative of the contractor's commitments under this section 3 clause, and will 


post copies of the notice in conspicuous places at the work site where both employees 


and applicants for training and employment positions can see the notice. The notice 


shall describe the section 3 preference, shall set forth minimum number and job titles 


subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship and training positions, the qualifications 
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for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking applications for each of 


the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin. 


D. The contractor agrees to include this section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to 


compliance with regulations in 24 CFR part 135, and agrees to take appropriate 


action, as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this section 3 


clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 


CFR part 135. The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the 


contractor has notice or knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in violation 


of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. 


E. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training 


positions, that are filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is 


executed, and (2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR 


part 135 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent 


the contractor's obligations under 24 CFR part 135. 


F. Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions, 


termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD 


assisted contracts. 


G.  With respect to work performed in connection with section 3 covered Indian housing 


assistance, section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance 


Act (25 U.S.C. 450e) also applies to the work to be performed under this contract. 


Section 7(b) requires that to the greatest extent feasible (i) preference and 


opportunities for training and employment shall be given to Indians, and (ii) preference 


in the award of contracts and subcontracts shall be given to Indian organizations and 


Indian-owned Economic Enterprises. Parties to this contract that are subject to the 


provisions of section 3 and section 7(b) agree to comply with section 3 to the 


maximum extent feasible, but not in derogation of compliance with section 7(b). 


 


ACCESS TO RECORDS AND RECORD RETAINAGE CLAUSE 


In general, all official project records and documents must be maintained during the operation 


of this project and for a period of three years following closeout in compliance with 24 CFR 


§570.490.  The North Carolina Department of the Treasurer, U.S. Department of Housing and 


Urban Development, the Comptroller General of the United States, and the NC Department of 


Environmental Quality, or any of their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any 


books, documents, papers and records of the Administering Agency which are pertinent to the 


execution of this agreement, for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts and 


transcriptions in compliance with the above Rule. 


 


LOBBYING CLAUSE 


Required by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code 


 
1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 


undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 
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of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee 


of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the 


making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 


cooperative, agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 


modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 


 


2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds, have been paid or will be paid to any 


person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 


Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 


Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, 


the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report 


Lobbying” in accordance with its instructions.  


This is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 


transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for 


making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code.  Any 


person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 


than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each failure. 


 


 








 


 


Stoneville Town Council 
Meeting Minutes 


June 5, 2018 
7:00 PM 


 


Present: Present were Mayor Ricky Craddock, Mayor Pro tem Lori Armstrong, Councilmen 
Chuck Hundley, Henry Thornton, Jerry Smith and Johnny Farmer.  


 
 Also, present were Town Manager Ken Gamble, Human Resource/Finance Officer 


Joanna Dalton, Town Clerk Sherri Darnell, Police Chief Frank Moore, Police 
Captain Brandon Rivera, Fire Chief Tim Brown, Public Works Director Mark Malloy, 
and Town Attorney Lisa Arthur.  


 
Welcome:  Mayor Craddock welcomed the assembly. After the Pledge of Allegiance and  
   Invocation, Mayor Craddock called the meeting to order. 
 
Minutes: Mayor Craddock asked for a motion to approve the Minutes from the last  
  meetings.  Councilman Hundley made the motion. Councilman Thornton  
  seconded.  Motion carried. 
 
Agenda: Mayor Ricky Craddock asked for a motion to approve the Agenda.  Councilman Smith 
  made the motion to approve the Agenda.  Mayor Pro tem Armstrong seconded  
  the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Public Hearing: 
  Mayor Craddock asked for a motion to open the public hearing.  Mayor Pro tem  
  Armstrong made the motion.  Councilman Hundley seconded.  Motion carried. 
 
FY 2018-2019 Budget: 
 Town Manager Gamble presented the budget for FY 2018-2019 in the amount of 
 $1,273,144.00, stating that it includes a 5th full time Police Officer and restored the Parks and 
 Recreation Director position with no tax or fee increases.  The Enterprise Fund budget is 
 $875,801 with $237,835 for the digital meter project.  Town Manager Gamble asked that the 
 5% 401k match be used instead as a one-time $1,000.00 bonus to all current full-time staff 
 and key part-time personnel (Fire Chief Brown and Police Administrative Assistant 
 Webster), rather than no additional pay for Police Officers or part-time staff.  Copy 
 incorporated into the minutes. 
 
Comments:  No one signed up for comments during the Public Hearing. 
 
Close Public Hearing: 
 Mayor Craddock asked for a motion to close the public hearing.  Councilman Smith made the 
 motion.  Mayor Pro tem Armstrong seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Executive Session: 
 Mayor Craddock asked for a motion to enter into executive session.  Councilman Thornton 
 made the motion.  Mayor Pro tem Armstrong seconded.  Motion carried. 
 
 Councilman Hundley was excused at 7:20 pm. 







 


 


 
Regular Session:  
 Mayor Craddock asked for a motion to return to regular session.  Councilman Thornton 
 made the motion.  Mayor Pro tem Armstrong seconded.  Motion carried. 
  
 Mayor Craddock announced that a personnel matter was discussed with no action taken. 
 
New Business:  
Resolution to Contract with Stoneville Health Insurance Store-Jerry L Smith and Associates. 
 Town Manager Gamble explained that this document clearly states the Council’s intentions 
 to contract with Councilman Smith as the Town’s insurance broker.  Councilman Farmer 
 made the motion to approve this resolution.  Councilman Thornton seconded. Councilman 
 Smith abstained from voting. Motion carried. Copy incorporated into the minutes. 
 
FY 2018-2019 Budget Ordinance: 
 Town Manager Gamble stated this is the ordinance to approve the Budget.  Councilman 
 Farmer made the motion to approve with the 5% 401k match removed and allow the bonus 
 for all full time staff and key part-time personnel.  Mayor Pro-tem Armstrong seconded.  
 Motion carried.  Copy incorporated into the minutes.  
 
FY 2018-2019 Schedule of Fees: 
 Town Manager Gamble explained that the schedule of fees reflects the increase in 
 water/sewer rates made in March 2018 as well as an increase of off duty officer pay to 
 $30.00 per hour to cover the Town’s administrative costs.  Councilman Smith made the 
 motion to approve the schedule of fees.   Councilman Thornton seconded.  Motion carried.  
 Copy incorporated into the minutes. 
 
FY 2018-2019 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP): 
 Town Manager Gamble stated that this is a non-binding planning document to give Council 
 some guidance on future capital needs and cost the Town may face in the next five years.
 Mayor Pro Tem Armstrong made the motion to approve this planning document.  
 Councilman Thornton seconded.  Motion carried. Copy incorporated into the minutes. 
 
Norman D. Craig Proclamation: 
 Mayor Craig read the proclamation and asked for a motion of approval.  Councilman 
 Thornton made the motion.  Mayor Pro tem Armstrong seconded.  Motion carried.  Copy 
 incorporated into the minutes. 
 
NCDEQ CDBG Grant Contract Approval: 
 Town Manager Gamble explained this contract for the 1.3 million grant with no match 
 required must be approved by the Council.  Councilman Thornton made the motion of 
 approval.  Mayor Pro tem Armstrong seconded.  Motion carried.  Copy incorporated into the 
 minutes. 
 
Amendment to Interlocal Tax and Fee Collection Agreement: 
 Town Manager Gamble stated that this amendment will allow nuisance abatement fees to 
 be added to the owner’s tax bill and will help the Town collect on the services.  Councilman 
 Thornton made the motion to approve.  Councilman Smith seconded. Motion carried. Copy 
 incorporated into the minutes. 







 


 


 
 
Public Comments:  There were no public comments 
 
Fire District Rating: 
 Fire Chief Brown stated that after much hard work, the Town’s fire district rating was which 
 impacts the homeowner’s insurance, has been lowered to 5 both inside and outside town 
 effective September 1st 2018.  Copy incorporated into the minutes. Chief Brown also stated 
 that the State 50/50 Grant has been awarded to purchase air packs. 
 
Budget Amendment 5: 
 Finance Officer Dalton asked for approval of this budget amendment for FY 2017-2018 in the 
 amount of $61,702.00.  Councilman Smith made the motion to approve the budget 
 amendment.  Councilman Thornton seconded.  Motion carried.  Copy incorporated into the 
 minutes. 
 
USDA Project Change Order 1: 
 Town Manager Gamble explained this Change Order does not require Council approval.  It is 
 merely to keep Council informed on the project and to advise that no additional funds are 
 needed.  Copy incorporated into the minutes. 
 
Town Manager Report: 
 Town Manager Gamble stated that the kickoff for Get Fit Rockingham was well attended and 
 runs for 13 weeks.  Participates who complete the 13 week fitness card will be entered into 
 a drawing for prizes at the Fall Festival. 
 The Pocket Park is still a bit behind due to the wet weather; however, the grading has been 
 completed. 
 The next Cruise-In is scheduled for June 15th from 5 until 8 PM> 
 The Rotary/Town of Stoneville Blood Drive held at Vera Holland Center on May 23rd resulted 
 in a collection of 19 pints. 
 
Adjourn: Mayor Craddock then asked for a motion of adjournment.  Mayor Pro tem  
  Armstrong made the motion.  Councilman Farmer seconded.  Motion carried. 
   
    
  
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Mayor, Ricky Craddock Town Clerk, Sherri Darnell, 
CMC, NCCMC 








 
O-2018-03 


TOWN OF STONEVILLE 
 


SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REHABILITATION – CDBG INFRASTRUCTURE 


 
Project Budget Ordinance 


 
 


 


 BE IT ORDAINED by the Town of Stoneville Town Council that, pursuant to 
Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the 
following capital project ordinance is hereby adopted:  
 
Section 1 The project authorized includes the installation of sewer 
improvements to serve the Sanitary Sewer System Rehabilitation Project Area to 
be financed with grant funds from the NC Department of Environment Quality 
(CDBG Infrastructure). 
  
Section 2 The officers of this unit are hereby directed to proceed with the 
capital project within the terms of the grant documents and the budget contained 
herein. 
 
Section 3 The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 
 


Sewer Improvements $1,198,500 


Administration $101,500 


  


 $1,300,000 
 
Section 4 The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete this 
project: 
 


 CDBG Local Total 


Sewer Improvements $1,198,500 $0 $1,198,500 
Administration $101,500 $0 $101,500 


    
TOTAL: $1,300,000 $0 $1,300,000 


 
Section 5  The Finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain within the Capital Project 
Fund sufficient specific detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the 
grantor agency, the grant agreements, and federal regulations.  
 
Section 6  Funds may be advanced from the General Fund for the purpose of making 
payments as due. Reimbursement requests should be made to the grantor agency in an 
orderly and timely manner. 
 
Section 7 The Finance Officer is directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the 
financial status of each project element in Section 3 and on the total grant revenues 
received or claimed. 







 
Section 8 The Finance Officer is directed to include a detailed analysis of past and 
future costs and revenues on this capital project in every budget submission made to the 
Town Council. 
 
 
 
 
Section 9 Copies of this capital project ordinance shall be furnished by the Clerk to 
the Town Council, and to the Finance Officer for direction in carrying out this project. 
 
         
Adopted this    day of    , 2018. 
 
 
 
             
Mayor       Town Clerk 


 
 
        
 


(SEAL) 
  


 








 
R-2018-04 


TOWN OF STONEVILLE 


 


RESOLUTION FOR REQUISITION AND CHECK SIGNATURES 


AND 


ADMINISTRATION OF THE TOWN OF STONEVILLE 


COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROJECT 


(Project No. 17-I-2970) 


 


WHEREAS, in order to receive Community Development Block Grant funds, the Town of 


Stoneville must authorize persons to sign the requisition forms for Community Development 


funds and checks for the following CDBG project (17-I-2970); and 


 


WHEREAS, in order to carry out all the activities of the Community Development Block Grant 


project, the Town of Stoneville will authorize persons to administer the program and execute all 


applicable documents; 


 


THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that  


 


 Ricky Craddock, Mayor     


 Kenneth Gamble, Town Manager    


 Joanna Dalton, Finance Officer    


 


be authorized to execute the signature requirements for requisitions of Community Development 


Block Grant funds and checks for disbursements. 


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that  


 


 Ricky Craddock, Mayor     


 Kenneth Gamble, Town Manager    


 Joanna Dalton, Finance Officer    


 


be also authorized to administer the Community Development Block Grant Program and execute 


all applicable documents. 


 


Approved, this the   day of      , 2018. 
 


 


 


               
Mayor        Town Clerk 


Town of Stoneville      Town of Stoneville 


 


 


(Seal) 





